
WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT 

Board of Commissioners February 22, 2022 
Regular Board Meeting  3:00 PM 

AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of the Regular Board Meeting Minutes of February 7, 2022 
2. Approval of Vouchers WSUD #30323 through #30360 in the amount of $75,739.94 
3. Approval of Vouchers SKWRF #16840 through #16859 in the amount of $22,424.35 
4. Approval of February Payroll in the Amount of $191,091.75 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM 

1. Resolution 997-22, DEC, Brixx Development, LLC., Overlook Apartments Phase II 
2. Resolution 1000-22, Modifying Small Works and Consulting Services Processes 
3.

STAFF REPORTS 

1. Plant Manager 
2. Operations Manager 
3. Finance Manager 
4. General Manager 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Executive Session may be scheduled to discuss District personnel performance (RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g)) 
and/or pending litigation (RCW 42.30.110 (1)(i)) 

FUTURE MEETINGS 

March 7               Regular Board Meeting (Venue Pending) 
March 21             Regular Board Meeting (Venue Pending) 
April 4                 Regular Board Meeting (Venue Pending) 
April 18               Regular Board Meeting (Venue Pending) 
May 2          Regular Board Meeting (Venue Pending) 
May 16          Regular Board Meeting (Venue Pending) 
May 18          Sewer Advisory Committee Meeting (Venue Pending) 

Executive Sessions may be scheduled as needed for personnel, legal and other 
similar matters. 

The Board may add and take action on other items not listed on the agenda





West Sound Utility District Board of Commissioner Minutes Page 1 of 4
Board Meeting February 7, 2022 

WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT 
Minutes of Meeting of the Board of Commissioners 

Microsoft Teams (Virtual Meeting) 
2924 SE Lund Avenue, Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Monday February 7, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Chairperson:   Jerry Lundberg 
Vice Chairperson:  Susan Way 
Commissioner:  James J. Hart  
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Attending:  Randy Screws, General Manager 
John Tapia, Operation Manager 
Marty Grabill, Plant Manager 
Joy Ramsdell, Finance Manager 
Ken Bagwell, Attorney 
Amber Brooks, Accounting/Office Assistant 

The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Way at 3:07 p.m.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of the Regular Board Meeting Minutes of January 10, 2022  
2. Approval of Vouchers WSUD #30238 through #30261 in the amount of $53,073.57  
3. Approval of Vouchers SKWRF #16789 through #16802 in the amount of $31,953.77  
4. Approval of Vouchers WSUD #30262 through #30294 in the amount of $68,811.94  
5. Approval of Vouchers SKWRF #16803 through #16825 in the amount of $41,447.86  
6. Approval of Vouchers WSUD #30295 through #30318 in the amount of $101,302.78  
7. Approval of Vouchers SKWRF #16826 through #16839 in the amount of $12,123.06  
8. Approval of January Payroll in the Amount of $219,651.60 

Commissioner Hart moved to approve items in the Consent Agenda. The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Way; motion approved 3-0.  

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 

Board Discussion Resolution 880-20, Emergency Declaration 
GM Randy Screws recommended no changes at this time and revisit in March. 

Follow Up Discussion, Robinson Plumbing, 3691 Colonial Lane SE 
GM Randy Screws recommended after reviewing the Resolution, that we can remove the 
materials fee to bring the cost down. 



West Sound Utility District Board of Commissioner Minutes Page 2 of 4
Board Meeting February 7, 2022 

Board Discussion of Well Sites 1 & 5, Veterans Park  
GM Screws informed the Board that there are not any substantial changes at this time. John 
Tapia mentioned no changes as well. 

Resolution 993-22, SKWRF Thickening Centrifuge Replacement Project, GM Signing Authority 
Passed 3-0. 

Resolution 994-22, Modifying Educational and Training Policies 
Passed 3-0. 

Resolution 995-22, Authorizing Equipment Purchase, Conifer Park Lift Station Pump 
Passed 3-0. 

Resolution 996-22, HDR Engineering Scope of Services Amendment, Powell Booster Station  
Passed 3-0. 

Resolution 997-22, DEC, Brixx Development, LLC., Overlook Apartments Phase II 
This Resolution was tabled until next meeting due to Overlook not getting their bond to us in time. 

Resolution 998-22, Contract Amendment for Repair of the Mitchell Road SE Sewer Main  
Passed 3-0. 

Resolution 999-22, Step Increase, WSUD Operations Manager  
Passed 3-0. 

PLANT MANAGER’S REPORT 
Plant Manager Marty Grabill reported: 

 Continues work with PSE on Conservation Grant Agreement. Year one of three 
completed 02/02/2022. Two more years to go. 

 Continued work with Trane (ESCO) on the Sharples replacement. Awaiting documents 
for approval and signature to proceed. Initial scheduling appears to be a 2023 early year 
completion. 

 Currently sampling per General Nutrient Permit, although no way to report 
through DOE yet. 

 Applied for Grant funding through Department of Ecology Nutrient Permit Grant 
Program to assist with some of the new requirements of the new GNP.  

 Made permits for January, it was a rough one. Lots of snow melt and high tides put us in 
an amazing situation that we were able to overcome. 

OPERATIONS MANAGER REPORT 
Operations Manager John Tapia reported: 

CIP 
 South Park Main Replacement Project: final comments are with WSE, possible conflict 

with storm culvert, no updates.

 Powell Booster Station Engineering: Addendum for project received. This is for offsite 
pipe abandonment and upsizing.   



West Sound Utility District Board of Commissioner Minutes Page 3 of 4
Board Meeting February 7, 2022 

 Sedgwick Water Main/Culvert Project: We have been notified by WSDOT and Fisheries 

that the water main is in conflict with a new fish stream crossing culvert. Project has been 

pushed out because of permitting with WSDOT and the Fisheries.

 Eisenhower Main Replacement: Engineers’ estimate came in at $390,000.00. This is now 

a 2022 project. No new updates. 

 Fircrest/Mile Hill Main replacement: Project is being reviewed, 2” galvanized to be 

replaced, possible development going in, it may change the scope of the project.

 Olney Sewer replacement: HDR Engineering estimate came back high. Sent to WSE for 

review. Will start when other projects are returned to us, no updates.

 Well 21 Rehabilitation: We are running Hokkaido’s pump and motor to obtain more 
data. Pumps, pipe and VFD received (waiting on a circuit board) First part of April for 
completion. Possible power issue out on the site. Waiting to hear back from Western 
Electric so they can test the site for us. 

CREW: 
1. St. Vincent DePaul project started and pushed out again for gas relocate.   
2. Crew continues on e-one survey information.  
3. Upper gradient flushing has started. Could take a month or so to complete.  
4. Boom truck should be ready next week.  
5. Received our automated flagging stations.  
6. Water meter replacements have started w/commercial meters first. 

FINANCE MANAGER REPORT 
Finance Manager Joy Ramsdell reported: 

 Consumption was billed at 38m gallon, which is up 4%. 

 January revenues for water was $317K, up 8% and we added 37 new water connections, 

which brought that to nearly 300K; sewer was $391K, up 10% and we added 9 new 

sewer connections. 

 There were 1625 online payments which included 1425 auto pay customers. We final 

billed 55 customers. 

 Continue working on year end. The goal is to complete all adjustments so we can close 
the books at the end of this month. I hope to not have any more invoices for 2021 after 
February 16th.  

 Unclaimed property from Cues $44K.  

 With Michaela joining, we reassigned tasks in departments. We will be focusing on more 
training this month.  Amber will be learning more Customer Service, including billing, 
final billing, past dues and shut offs. Michaela is learning the Plant Payroll and District 
AP and JE. Janet has been helping with the training.  

 January is the busiest month for Finance, but the team worked hard together to get all 

tasks completed. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
General Manager Screws reported: 

 Board Discussion, Resolution 880-20, Emergency Declaration 



West Sound Utility District Board of Commissioner Minutes Page 4 of 4
Board Meeting February 7, 2022 

o Board Discussion, Resolution 880-20, Emergency Declaration Recommend 
keeping in place and revisit at the next Board Meeting. 

 Follow Up Discussion, Robison Plumbing ,3691 Colonial Lane SE 
o After discussion with staff and review of District Policy, recommended relief of 

elimination materials cost for the repair. 
 Update, Well 1 & 5 Site Area, Veterans Park 

o Staff continue doubling up for site visits Monday through Friday and shutting 
down the site over the weekends. No substantial updates at this time. 

 Resolution 997-22, DEC, Brixx Development, LLC., Overlook Apartments Phase II 
o GM requested this to be tabled as Developer did not provide all required DEC 

Documents. 
 Work continues on restructuring of the District Developer permitting process. 
 Work continues on reviewing and updating the website. 
 Staff is continuing to update and review the website. Continue working with HDR on 

completion of the Water System Plan FCS Group on the Rate Study. Scheduled meeting 
with FCS Group to go over the Financial Chapter for the Water System Plan and to 
review initial cost of service analysis on water and sewer.  

 No updates on reclassification of some of the risk class employees to reduce L&I costs.  
 Executive Sessions requested for 15 minutes to discuss District personnel performance 

(RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g)). Informed Board action will need to be taken after Executive 
Session. 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
Commissioner Hart stated that 2 weeks ago he attended WASWD Section 2 Meeting. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Board went into a 15 minute Executive Session with GM Screws and Commissioners at 3:48 
p.m. to discuss District personnel performance (RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g)) and/or pending 
litigation (RCW 42.30.110 (1)(i)). Action will be taken after Executive Session. Board returned 
to regular session at 4:03 p.m. Commissioner Lundberg moved to approve Step Increases for 
WSUD Operations Manager, passed 3-0. 

Adjourn 
Commissioner Hart moved to adjourn the meeting at 4:05 p.m. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Way; motion was approved 3-0.   

Jerry Lundberg  Susan Way 
Chairperson    Vice-Chairperson  

____________________________ 
James Jay Hart 
Secretary 





WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION 997-22 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT  

APPROVING THE DEVELOPERS EXTENSION CONTRACT  
FOR SEWER AND WATER UTILITIES FOR THE  

OVERLOOK APARTMENTS PHASE II 

WHEREAS, Mr. Brett McDonough, Manager of Brixx Development, LLC., has submitted 
an application, plans and documents for the extension of water and sewer services for Phase II of 
the Multifamily Development, Overlook Apartments; and 

WHEREAS, it shall be the responsibility of the developer to construct the water and sewer 
system to and within their development site in accordance with the standards of West Sound Utility 
District and as approved by the District; NOW, THEREFORE,  

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT HEREBY 
RESOLVES:

Section 1. West Sound Utility District hereby approves the execution of a Developer Extension 
Contract (Exhibit “A”) with Mr. Brett McDonough, Manager of Brixx Development, LLC. for the 
extension of water and sewer services to and within Phase II of the Multifamily Development, 
Overlook Apartments.  The Board further authorizes the General Manager on behalf of the District, 
to execute the contract with Mr. Brett McDonough, Manager of Brixx Development, LLC. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of West Sound Utility District at 
a Regular Board meeting scheduled on February 7, 2022. 

WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT
Kitsap County, Washington 

___________________________         __________________________ 
Jerry Lundberg   Susan Way  
Chairperson          Vice Chairperson 

___________________________                
James J. Hart  
Secretary 



rscrews
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"





























WSUD Resolution 1000-22  Page 1 of 5 

WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION 1000-22 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
OF WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT  

MODIFYING PROCESSES FOR THE SMALL PUBLIC WORKS 
ROSTER PROCESS TO AWARD PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS AND 

CONSULTING SERVICES ROSTER FOR ARCHITECTURAL, 
ENGINEERING AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

WHEREAS, RCW 57.08.050, RCW 39.04.155 and other laws regarding 
contracting for public works by Water-Sewer Districts, allow certain contracts to 
be awarded by a small works roster process; and 

WHEREAS, in order to be able to implement small works roster processes, 
West Sound Utility District (District) is required by law to have in place an 
adopted a resolution establishing specific procedures; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 39.80.030 requires that an agency publish in advance 
that agency’s requirement for professional services and that one of the ways to 
accomplish that notification is to announce generally to the public its projected 
requirements for any category or type of professional services and request 
qualification statements to be kept on file with the agency; NOW, THEREFORE,

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WEST SOUND UTILITY 
DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES: 

Section 1. MRSC Rosters.
The District has contracted with the Municipal Research and Services 
Center of Washington (MRSC) to adopt for District use those state wide 
electronic databases for small public works roster and consulting services 
developed and maintained by MRSC and authorizes District staff to sign 
that contract.  In addition, paper and/or electronic rosters may be kept on 
file by appropriate District departments. 

Section 2. Small Public Works Roster.
The following small works roster procedures are established for use by the 
District pursuant to RCW 39.04.155: 

1. Cost.  The District need not comply with formal sealed bidding 
procedures for the construction, building, renovation, remodeling, 
alteration, repair, or improvement of real property where the estimated 
cost does not exceed Three Hundred-Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350,000), 
which includes the costs of labor, material, equipment and sales and/or 
use taxes as applicable.  Instead, the District may use the Small Public 



WSUD Resolution 1000-22  Page 2 of 5 

Works Roster procedures for public works projects as set forth herein.  
The breaking of any project into units or accomplishing any projects by 
phases is prohibited if done for the purpose of avoiding the maximum 
dollar amount of a contract that may be executed using the small works 
roster process. 

2. Publication.  At least once  per calendar year, on behalf of the District, 
MRSC shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation within the 
jurisdiction a notice of the existence of the roster or rosters and solicit 
the names of contractors for such roster or rosters. Responsible 
contractors shall be added to appropriate MRSC Roster(s) an any time 
that they submit a written request and necessary records.  The District 
may require master contracts to be signed that become effective when a 
specific award is made using a small works roster. 

3. Quotations.  The District shall obtain telephone, written, or electronic 
quotations for public works contracts from contractors on the appropriate 
small works roster to assure that a competitive price is established and 
to award contracts to a contractor who meets the mandatory bidder 
responsibility criteria in RCW 39.04.350(1) and may establish 
supplementary bidder criteria under RCW 39.04.350(2). 

a) A contract awarded from a small works roster need not be advertised.  
Invitations for quotations shall include an estimate of the scope and 
nature of the work to be performed as well as materials and equipment 
to be furnished.  However, detailed plans and specifications need not 
be included in the invitation. 

b) Quotations may be invited from all appropriate contractors on the 
appropriate small works roster.  As an alternative, quotations may be 
invited from at least five contractors on the appropriate small works 
roster who have indicated the capability of performing the kind of 
work being contracted, in a manner that will equitably distribute the 
opportunity among the contractors on the appropriate roster.  
“Equitably distribute” means that the District may not favor certain 
contractors on the appropriate small works roster over other 
contractors on the appropriate small works roster who perform 
similar services. 

If the estimated costs of the work is from two- hundred and fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000.00) to three-hundred fifty thousand 
dollars ($350,000.00), the District may choose to solicit bids from 
less than all the appropriate contractors on the appropriate small 
works roster, but must notify the remaining contractors on the 
appropriate small works roster that quotations on the work are being 



WSUD Resolution 1000-22  Page 3 of 5 

sought.  The District has the sole option of determining whether this 
notice to the remaining contractors is made by: 

(i) Publishing notice in a legal newspaper in general circulation in 
the area where the work is to be done; 

(ii) Mailing a notice to these contractors; or 
(iii) Sending a notice to these contractors by facsimile or email. 

c) At the time bids are solicited, the District representative shall not 
inform a contractor of the terms or amount of any other contractor’s 
bid for the same project; 

d) A written record shall be made by the District representative of each 
contractor’s bid on the project and of any conditions imposed on the 
bid.  Immediately after an award is made, the bid quotations obtained 
shall be recorded, open to public inspection, and available by 
telephone inquiry. 

4. Limited Public Works Process.  If a work, construction, alteration, 
repair, or improvement project is estimated to cost less than fifty 
thousand dollars ($50,000.00), the District may award such a contract 
using the limited public works process provided under RCW 
39.04.155(3).  For a limited public works project, the District will solicit 
electronic or written quotations from a minimum of three contractors 
from the appropriate small works roster and shall award the contract to 
the lowest responsible bidder as defined under RCW 39.04.010.  After 
an award is made, the quotations shall be open to public inspection and 
available by electronic request. 

For limited public works projects, the District may waive the payment and 
performance bond requirements of chapter 39.08 RCW and the retainage 
requirements of chapter 60.28 RCW, thereby assuming the liability for the 
contractor’s nonpayment of laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, 
materialmen, suppliers, and taxes imposed under Title 82 RCW that may be 
due from the contractor for the limited public works project.  However, the 
District shall have the right of recovery against the contractor for any 
payments made on the contractor’s behalf. 

  The District shall maintain a list of the contractors contacted and the 
contracts awarded during the previous 24 months under the limited public 
works process, including the name of the contractor, the contractor’s 
registration number, the amount of the contract, a brief description of the 
type of work performed, and the date the contract was awarded. 



WSUD Resolution 1000-22  Page 4 of 5 

5. Determining Lowest Responsible Bidder.  The District Board shall 
award the contract for the public works project to the lowest responsible 
bidder provided that, whenever there is a reason to believe that the lowest 
acceptable bid is not the best price obtainable, all bids may be rejected 
and the District Board may call for new bids.  A responsible bidder shall 
be a registered or licensed contractor who meets the mandatory bidder 
responsibility criteria established by RCW 39.04.350 and who meets any 
supplementary bidder responsibly criteria established by the District. 

6. Award.  The General Manager or his/her designee shall present all 
telephone quotations/bids and recommendations for award of the 
contract to the lowest responsible bidder to the District Board.  However, 
for public works projects involving a cost or fee of less than Twenty 
Thousand Dollars ($20,000), the General Manager shall have the 
authority to award public works contracts without District Board 
approval, provided that the District Board shall ratify the General 
Manager’s approval at the next scheduled District Board meeting by 
means of the consent agenda.  For public works projects over Twenty 
Thousand Dollars ($20,000), the District Board shall award all public 
works contracts. 

Section 3. Consulting Services Roster. 

1. Consulting Services.  Consulting services are professional services that 
have a primarily intellectual output or product and include architectural 
and engineering services as defined in RCW 39.80.020. 

2. Publications.  At least once a year, on behalf of the District, MRSC shall 
publish in a newspaper of general circulation within the jurisdiction a 
notice of the existence of the consulting services roster or rosters and 
solicit statements of qualifications from firms providing consulting 
services.  Such advertisements will include information on how to find 
the address and telephone number of a representative of the District who 
can provide further details as to the District’s projected needs for 
consulting services.  Firms or persons providing consulting services shall 
be added to appropriate MRSC roster or rosters at any time that they 
submit a written request and necessary records.  The District may require 
master contracts to be signed that become effective when a specific 
award is made using a consulting services roster. 

3. Professional Architectural and Engineering Services.  The MRSC 
Rosters will distinguish between professional architectural and 
engineering services as defined in RCW 39.80.020 and other consulting 
services and will announce generally to the public the District’s 
projected requirements for any category or type of professional or other 



WSUD Resolution 1000-22  Page 5 of 5 

consulting services.  The District reserves the right to publish an 
announcement on each occasion when professional services or other 
consulting services are required by the agency and to use paper and/or 
other electronic rosters that may be kept on file by appropriate District 
departments. 

Section 4.   Effective Date. 
This resolution shall take effect and be in full force on February 22, 2022. 
Additionally, Resolution 104-09 and Resolution 353-12 are hereby 
repealed.

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of West Sound 
Utility District at a Board meeting scheduled on February 22, 2022. 

WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT 
Kitsap County, Washington 

_______________________________      ______________________________ 
Jerry Lundberg  Susan Way 
Chairperson  Vice Chairperson 

________________________________ 
James J. Hart 
Secretary 


